
 
 
 
 

 
Roll Call MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 

VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 
Wednesday, August 24, 2022 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

       IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING 
        PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE PLAN COMMISSION MEETING & PARTICIPATION 

 
      Plan Commission will Meet Electronically on Wednesday, August 24, 2022 

 
On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
University City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. Due to the current order restricting gatherings of 
people and the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the August 24, 2022 meeting 
will be conducted via videoconference.  

 
 Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
 

Webinar   
 Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85698072764?pwd=dkZXTEhINHZ3UHA2V1BzTEx2ajRRZz09  

Passcode: 521137 
Or One tap mobile :  
    US: +13092053325,,85698072764#,,,,*521137#  or +13126266799,,85698072764#,,,,*521137#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

US: +1 309 205 3325  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 931 3860  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 
301 715 8592  or +1 669 444 9171  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 253 215 
8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 386 347 5053  or +1 564 217 2000  or 877 853 5247 (Toll 
Free) or 888 788 0099 (Toll Free) 

Webinar ID: 856 9807 2764 

Passcode: 521137 

    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcorRAsYRs  

Citizen Participation 

Those who wish to provide a comment during the “Public Comment” and/or “Public Hearing” portions 
of the agenda: may provide written comments or request video participation invites to the Acting 
Director of Planning and Development ahead of the meeting. Please specify which case and portion 
of the agenda you wish to comment. 
ALL written comments or video participation invites must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the 
day of the meeting. Comments may be sent via email to: jwagner@ucitymo.org or mailed to the City 
Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention John L. Wagner, Director of Planning and Development. Such 
comments will be provided to the Plan Commission prior to the meeting. Comments will be made a 
part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard University City, Missouri 63130 314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85698072764?pwd=dkZXTEhINHZ3UHA2V1BzTEx2ajRRZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcorRAsYRs
mailto:jwagner@ucitymo.org


 
 
 
 

Please note, when submitting your comments or invites, a name and address must be provided. 
Please also note if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item, and a name and address are 
not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
The City apologizes for any inconvenience the meeting format change may pose to individuals, but it 
is extremely important that extra measures be taken to protect employees, residents 
board/commission members and elected officials during these challenging times.  

 
    AGENDA 

     PLAN COMMISSION 
 

1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes – July 27, 2022 Plan Commission meeting. 
3. Public Comments – (Limited to 3 minutes for individual’s comments, 5 minutes for 

representatives of groups or organizations.)  
4. Old Business  

a. None 
    5. New Business 

a. Consolidation Plat – SUB 22-09. 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
Request: Approval of Lot Consolidation Plat for Lots 6 and 7 of Phase II. 
Address: 8630 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

b. Record Plat and Right-of-Way Dedication Plat – SUB 22-10. 
Applicant: U-City, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Record Plat and Right-of-Way Dedication Plat for Phase IV  
Address: Northwest corner of the intersection of Olive Boulevard and Woodson Road. 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

c. Right-of-Way Dedication Plat – SUB 22-11. 
Applicant: University Heights Subdivision 
Request: Approval of Right-of-Way Dedication Plat 
Address: Trinity Avenue, adjacent to City Hall  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

d. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-07. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: Bougie Bites STL, LLC 
Request: to allow a food truck to operate temporarily at 7001 Olive Boulevard in the 
“GC” General Commercial District. 
Address: 7001 Olive Boulevard 

 (VOTE REQUIRED) 

      6. Other Business 
a. None 

 
7. Reports 

a. Council Liaison Report 
b. Comprehensive Plan Update 

8. Adjournment 



 
           

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Via Video Conference 

 6:30 pm; Thursday July 27, 2022 
 
 

The Plan Commission held its regular session via video conference on Wednesday, July 
27, 2022. The meeting commenced at 6:31 pm and concluded at approximately 8:45 p.m. 

 
Call to Order – (6:31 pm.) Chairwoman Holly called the meeting to order.  
 

1. Roll Call 
 
Present      
Margaret Holly     
Mark Harvey  
Al Fleischer Jr. 
Ellen Hartz  
Victoria Gonzalez 
Patricia McQueen  
Charles Gascon (joined at 6:54 p.m.) 
 
Absent  
None 
     
Staff Present 
City Manager, Gregory Rose 
John Wagner, Acting Director of Planning and Development 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 

 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Minutes from the February 23, 2022, March 23, 2022, March 31, 2022, April 27, 2022, 
June 22, 2022 and the July 7, 2022 Plan Commission meetings were approved, with 
minor corrections. 

 
 Chair Holly provided a reminder about the Plan Commission’s role in the City Charter. 
 
3. Old Business – None 
 
4. New Business  

1. Final Development Plan – FDP-02. 
Applicant: TriStar Companies, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Final Development Plan for Tru Hotel. 
Address: 711 Kingsland Avenue 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
 
 

 
Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 



July 27, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
2 

 

Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the 
Staff Report and the City’s position. 
 
A brief discussion ensued.  
 
The Final Development Plan was approved as presented by a vote of 6 – 0.  
 
 

2. Right-of-Way Dedication Plats – SUB 22-08. 
Applicant: Delmar View Properties, LLC, Brentmoor Holdings, LLC 
Request: Approval of three (3) Right-of-Way Dedication Plats 
Address: McKnight Place  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the 
Staff Report and the City’s position. 
 
A brief discussion ensued.  
 
The Right-of-Way Dedication Plats were approved as presented by a vote of 6 – 0.  

 
 

3. Reconsideration: Development Plan & Blight Study 353 Review /Recommendation. 
Applicant: Charles Deutsch and Company 
Request: Study and Recommendation of 100% Tax Abatement for 5 Years  
Address: 8630 Delmar Blvd 
(Two (2) VOTES REQUIRED) 
 
Chair Holly introduced the agenda item. 
 
Commissioner Gascon joined the meeting at 6:54. 
 
City Manager Rose provided a statement regarding the proposed reconsideration of 
the blight study and Chapter 353 recommendation. 
 
Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 
 
A lively discussion ensued.  
 
Commissioner Gascon asked if the data in the Staff Report provided by the Applicant 
refers to Net Present Value. City Manager Rose indicated that it did not. 
 
The robust discussion continued.  
 
Chairwoman Holly talked about the discussion that took place at the previous 
meetings in 2020, including the request at those meetings and how the request has 
changed to the present proposal. 
 
The Applicant and his representatives provided a presentation. 
 



July 27, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
3 

 

Chairwoman Holly asked about the ownership names identified on the applications. 
City Attorney Mulligan provided a brief answer, and then deferred to the Applicant to 
clarify. 

 
A motion was made to approve the Blight Determination.  
 
The Reconsideration of the Blight Determination was approved by a vote of 5 – 2.  
 
A motion was made to approve the Chapter 353 Tax Abatement.   
 
Chairwoman Holly made a motion to amend the original motion to stop the tax 
abatement if the property is sold within the abatement period. The amendment 
passed by a vote of 6 – 1.  
 
The Applicant will provide a Net Present Value (NPS) assessment of the data. 
 
The Reconsideration of the Chapter 353 Tax Abatement was approved by a vote of 
4 – 3.  
 

5. Other Business. 
Chairwoman Holly mentioned that the Commission has not elected new officers in 
quite some time, and that we should address this at the next meeting. 

6. Reports. 
Council Liaison Report – Councilmember Hales commended the City Staff on the 
response to the flood earlier in the week. 

5. Adjournment. 
Chairwoman Holly adjourned the meeting at 8:45 pm. 



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   August 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 22-09 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Location:    8630 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant:    170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
 
Request: Minor Subdivision – Lot Consolidation   
Existing Zoning:   PD-C – Planned Commercial District 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant 
Proposed Zoning:   No change – PD-C – Planned Commercial District 
Proposed Land Use:  Commercial, retail 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:  PD-C – Planned Commercial District, GC – General Commercial 
East:  PD-C – Planned Commercial District  
South:  SR – Single-family Residential 
West:  IC – Industrial Commercial          
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Lot Consolidation Plat Application 
B. Lot Consolidation Plat 

 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property is part of Phase II of the Market at Olive Development, on the 
south side of Olive Boulevard, west of McKnight Road. The record plat for the entirety of 
Phase II was approved by the Plan Commission on March 23, 2022, and subsequently 
by the City Council on April 25, 2022 via ordinance number 7177.  
 
 



Page 2 
SUB 22-09 

The Applicant has submitted this application to consolidate Lots 6 and 7 of the original 
plat. The original Lot 6 was only 0.148 acres in size and was situated on the western 
end of the original Lot 7, as illustrated in Figure 1 below, along with the new Adjusted 
Lot 7. 
 

 
Figure 1. Market at Olive, Phase II: Original Lots 6 and 7 (left) and Adjusted Lot 7 (right).  
 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Minor Subdivision” process identified in Section 
405.170 of the Subdivision regulations.  
 
Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision 
and Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Minor 
Subdivision. 
 
 







  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   August 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 22-10 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3 
 
Location: Northwest corner of the intersection of Olive 

Boulevard and Woodson Road. 

Applicant:    U-City, LLC. 
 
Request: Major Subdivision – Record Plat and Right-of-Way 

Dedication  
 
Existing Zoning:   “GC” General Commercial, “SR” Single-family Residential. 
Proposed Zoning:   “PD” Planned Commercial District – Application forthcoming 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant, demolished residences and vacant commercial. 
Proposed Land Use:  Commercial 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:     IC – Industrial Commercial 
East:      “GC” General Commercial, “SR” Single-family Residential 
South:     “PD” Planned Commercial District  
West:      “PD” Planned Commercial District    
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Subdivision Plat Application 
B. Record Plat and Legal Descriptions 

 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The 11.72-acres property currently consists of forty (40) lots that comprise Jeffrey Plaza 
at Olive Boulevard and Woodson Road, and the residential lots on Orchard, Richard 
and Elmore Courts, plus some right-of-way that is proposed to be dedicated to the City 
of University City. 



Page 2 
SUB 22-10 

The Applicant is proposing to create three (3) lots for commercial activities in addition to 
two (2) areas of common ground. Two (2) of the proposed commercial lots are adjacent 
to Olive Boulevard: Lot A is 1.414 acres and Lot B is 1.500 acres. The larger Lot C is 
situated north of the smaller parcels and consists of 7.571 acres.  
 
One area of common ground is located on the southwestern portion of the site, 
accommodating future drive aisles. The other common ground parcel is located at the 
northern edge of the site. The right-of-way area is located along the southern edge of 
the, adjacent to Olive Boulevard, and along Woodson Road on the site’s eastern border. 
 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 
405.165 of the Subdivision regulations and as part of the “Final Plat Submittal 
Requirements” process identified in Section 405.380.    
 
Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of sections 405.165 and 
405.380 of the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Major 
Subdivision and Right-of-way Dedication Plat. 
 
 

 



 

  
 
 
 
  
  Department of Community Development 
   6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

                                                             SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 
 
The application form must be completed and submitted along with the subdivision plat, letter of 
authorization (if applicable), fees, and other required attachments on or before the filing deadline.  
The filing deadline is generally twenty-eight (28) days prior to the Plan Commission meeting. 
 
1. Application Type (Check each that apply): 
 
___ Minor Subdivision ___ Boundary Adjustment   ___ Right-of-way Vacation 
___ Preliminary Plat  ___ Preliminary Development Plan  ___ Plat Vacation 
___ Final Plat   ___ Final Development Plan   ___ Dwelling Unit Display 
 
2. Attachments ___ (#) Folded paper copies of Plat 
   ___ Electronic copy 
   ___ Improvement Plans 
   ___ Other ______________________ 
   _______________________________ 
 
3. Property Owner Information: 
 Name:  ________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________ 
 Address: ________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________ 
 
4. Authorized Agent (an authorization letter from the current property owner must be submitted if 
applicant is other than owner – not applicable to right-of-way vacation application): 
 Name:  ________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________ 
 Address: ________________________________________ 
   ________________________________________ 
 
5. Project Description (include a brief description of the project, including number of existing lots, 
number of lots proposed, total acreage, parcel identification, and/or any other applicable 
information): 
  __________________________________________________________________ 
  __________________________________________________________________ 
  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
 

Fee Calculation: $200.00 Base Fee + ____ # of lots x $35.00 = __________ 

alison.gauch
Typewritten Text
5







  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   August 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 22-11 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  2 
 
Location:    Trinity Avenue, adjacent to City Hall 
 
Applicant:    University Heights Subdivision 
 
Request: Right-of-Way Dedications – Final Plat  
 
Existing Zoning: N/A 
Proposed Zoning:   No Change 
Existing Land Use:   Street 
Proposed Land Use:  No change 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:     “SR” Single-family Residential 
East:      “PA” Public Activity 
South:     “PA” Public Activity 
West:      “SR” Single-family Residential   
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. R-O-W Dedication Plat 
 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
This plat proposes to dedicate to the City of University City a portion of Trinity Avenue. 
Both sides of the street would be dedicated to the City up to just past its intersection 
with Princeton Avenue. From that point, only half the street (the eastern side) would be 
dedicated to the City. The other (western) portion of Trinity Avenue would remain with 
the University Heights subdivision.  
 
 



Page 2 
SUB 22-08 

Also, at the intersection of Trinity and Princeton Avenues, a small portion of the 
dedicated area has been carved out around the antique light located there. This area 
would also remain with University Heights, and the subdivision would retain 
maintenance responsibilities for the light. 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Final Plat Submittal Requirements” process identified 
in Section 405.380 of the Subdivision regulations.    
 
Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision 
and Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposals meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation 
requirements for a Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed right-
of-way dedication.  



Property Description: 

A tract of land being part of Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide, (formerly Harvard Avenue), of 

“University Heights”, a subdivision according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 pages 

14 and 15 of the St. Louis County records, in U.S.  Survey 378, Township 45 North – Range 6 

East, University City, St. Louis County, Missouri and being more particularly described as: 

Commencing at a point in the North line of Delmar Boulevard, 80 feet wide, being the Southwest 

corner of Lot 1 in Block 5 of said “University Heights”; thence Eastwardly along the South line of 

said Lot 1, being also the North line of said Delmar Boulevard, 80 feet wide, North 90 degrees 

00 minutes 00 seconds East 162.71 feet to the ACTUAL POINT OF BEGINNING; thence along 

a curve to the left whose radius point bears North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 

12.00 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 28.49 feet to a point in the Southwest line 

of Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide; thence Northwestwardly along said Southwest line, the following 

courses and distances: along a curve to the right whose radius point bears North 43 degrees 47 

minutes 43 seconds East 241.00 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 31.74 feet, 

along a curve to the right whose radius point bears North 51 degrees 11 minutes 31 seconds 

East 485.00 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 127.18 feet and along a curve to 

the left whose radius point bears South 66 degrees 14 minutes 21 seconds West 377.00 feet 

from the last mentioned point, a distance of 82.19 feet to a point; thence leaving said Southwest 

line of Trinity Avenue, North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 52.31 feet to a point; 

thence North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East 10.99 feet to a point; thence along a 

curve to the left whose radius point bears North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 5.00 

feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 15.71 feet to a point; thence North 90 degrees 

00 minutes 00 seconds West 10.99 feet to a point; thence North 00 degrees 00 minutes 00 

seconds West 49.56 feet to the P.R.C. rounding in the East line of Lot 1 in Block 6 of said 

“University Heights”; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds East 25.00 feet to a point 

in the centerline of said Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide; thence Northwardly along said centerline, 

along a curve to the right whose radius point bears North 88 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds 

East 460.00 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 106.10 feet and along a curve to 

the right whose radius point bears South 78 degrees 17 minutes 03 seconds East 295.00 feet 

from the last mentioned point, a distance of 43.04 feet to a point; thence leaving said centerline, 

South 69 degrees 55 minutes 28 seconds East 25.00 feet to a point in the East line of said 

Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide; thence Southwardly and Southeastwardly along the East and 

Northeast lines of said Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide, the following courses and distances: along 

a curve to the left whose radius point bears South 69 degrees 55 minutes 28 seconds East 

270.00 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 39.39 feet, along a curve to the left 

whose radius point bears South 78 degrees 17 minutes 03 seconds East 435.00 feet from the 

last mentioned point, a distance of 383.65 feet, along a curve to the left whose radius point 

bears North 51 degrees 21 minutes 39 seconds East 191.00 feet from the last mentioned point, 

a distance of 25.22 feet and along a curve to the left whose radius point bears North 43 degrees 

47 minutes 43 seconds East 203.93 feet from the last mentioned point, a distance of 155.88 feet 

to a point in the aforesaid North line of Delmar Boulevard, 80 feet wide; thence Westwardly 

along said North line, North 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 184.07 to the point of 

beginning and containing 24,695 square feet according to a survey by Volz Incorporated during 

July, 2022.  

General Notes: 

1. Bearing system adopted from the plat of “University Heights”, recorded in Plat Book 6 pages 

14 and 15 of the St. Louis County records. 

2. A title commitment was not provided to us.  This property is subject to easements, 

restrictions and rights of way of record, if any. 

We, Volz Incorporated, have during July 2022, by order of the University Heights Subdivision 
No. 1 Trustees, made a survey and prepared a right-of-way dedication plat of “A tract of land 
being part of Trinity Avenue (formerly Harvard Avenue) of ‘University Heights’, a subdivision 
according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 6 pages 14 and 15 of the St. Louis County 
records, in U. S. Survey 378, Township 45 North – Range 6 East, St. Louis County, Missouri”
and the results are shown hereon.  This survey was executed in accordance with the current 
Missouri Standards for Property Boundary Surveys adopted by the Missouri Board for 
Architects, Professional Engineers, Professional Land Surveyors and Professional Landscape 
Architects and the Missouri Department of Agriculture and meets the accuracy requirements set 
forth for Urban Property.  Monumentation shown hereon has been set as of the date of the 
recording of this plat. 
 
August 5, 2022 
____________________________                                       _____________________________
Date                                                                                                        Richard G. Norvell, P.L.S. 

  Professional Land Surveyor
Mo. P.L.S. #2005000077

We, the undersigned, owners of the tract of land herein platted and further described in the 
foregoing surveyor’s certificate, have caused a right-of-way dedication plat to be made in the 
manner shown on this plat, which plat shall hereafter be known as “Trinity Avenue Right-Of-Way 
Dedication Plat”.  Trinity Avenue, 50 feet wide, together with all roundings located at the street 
intersections, which for better identification is shown hachured on this plat, is hereby dedicated 
to the City of University City, Missouri, for public use forever. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed the foregoing this ________ day of 
__________________________, 2022. 
 
UNIVERSITY HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION NO. 1 

 

BY: _________________________________________________________ 
 
Name Printed: _________________________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
    ) 
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS ) 
 
On this _______ day of _______________________, 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and 
for said state, personally appeared ___________________________________, a Trustee of 
University Heights Subdivision No. 1, an incorporated association of the State of Missouri, 
known to me to be the person who executed the within “Trinity Avenue Right-Of-Way Dedication
Plat” on behalf of said association, by authority of the Trustees, and the said Trustee 
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said association. 
 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the 
County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 
 
Notary Public: ____________________________________ 
 
Name Printed: ____________________________________ 
 
My Commission Expires: ___________________________ 

LaRette Reese, City Clerk for the City of University City, Missouri, does hereby certify that the 
plat of “Trinity Avenue Right-Of-Way Dedication Plat”, as shown on this plat, was approved by 
the City Council of the City of University City, Missouri, under Ordinance No.______________. 
 
Passed and approved by the City Council this ________ day of ___________________, 2022. 
 

___________________________________ 
LaRette Reese, City Clerk 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 



 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   August 24, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   CUP 22-07 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  3  
 
Location: 7001 Olive Boulevard 
 
Applicant: Bougie Bites STL, LLC 
 
Property Owner: Bougie Bites STL, LLC 
 
Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) The proposed use is 

to allow a food truck to operate temporarily at 7001 
Olive Boulevard. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval    [ X ] Approval with Conditions   [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application for Conditional Use Permit 
 
Existing Zoning:   GC – General Commercial    
Existing Land Use:   Vacant – Soon-to-be demolished building 
Proposed Zoning:   No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: Temporary food truck 

 
Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  SR   “SR” Single-family Residential District 
East:  GC   “GC” General Commercial District 
South:  GC              “PA” Public Activity District (South side of Olive Boulevard) 
West:  GC  “GC” General Commercial District     
 
 



C.U.P. 22-07 
Page 2  

Existing Property 
The existing property at 7001 Olive Boulevard, at the intersection of Olive and 
Pennsylvania Avenue. The site is triangular in shape, making development on the site 
difficult. The existing building is only 484 square-feet in size and is located right in the 
middle of the property, adding to the redevelopment difficulties.  
 
The location and surrounding zoning of the property, as well as an aerial view of the site, 
are illustrated in Figure 1 below.  
 

 
Figure 1. 7001 Olive Boulevard. 

Applicant’s Request 
Ms. Latoya Thompson has purchased the property with the intention of having a 
restaurant on the site. As the building is not in the best location for a restaurant on this 
lot, she decided to demolish the existing building and erect a building better suited to the 
shape of the lot. Please see Ms. Thompson’s narrative for details on the kind of restaurant 
she plans to open. Demolition of the existing building is scheduled for occur in the next 
couple of weeks.  
 
While the permanent restaurant is being built, Latoya would like to temporarily open her 
restaurant in a food truck she has purchased. As food trucks are not permitted in 
University City, one way to accommodate her request is through a Conditional Use 



C.U.P. 22-07 
Page 3  

Permit. Conditions of the C.U.P. will govern the location of the food truck, the hours of 
operation and the duration that the food truck will be allowed to operate. These conditions 
are addressed in the Analysis below. A photo of the food truck can be found below in 
Figure 2.  

Analysis 
A Conditional Use Permit in this instance is requited per the General Commercial District 
regulations, section §400.500 – Permitted Uses, note the highlighted section: 
  
In addition to the land uses permitted in this district, certain other uses may be 
conditionally allowed per Section 400.510. Other uses not listed, which are determined 
by the Zoning Administrator to be identical or similar to one (1) or more of the following 
uses, are permitted as well. When an unlisted use is proposed, which appears to meet 
the intent of this district but its potential impact is uncertain, then such use shall be 
considered a conditional use. 

 
Figure 2. Food truck proposed to temporarily locate at 7001 Olive Boulevard. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use of a temporary food truck would not be 
detrimental to the surrounding area.  
 
Staff is recommending approval of the request, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The food truck may be parked on location only for the duration of the construction 
of the new restaurant.  

2. The food truck hours of operation shall not extend past 9:00 p.m. (Ms. Thompson 
has asked for hours up to midnight.) 

3. The food truck shall be parked so as not to interfere with construction and shall 
maintain at least two (2) customer parking spaces.  






















	2022-08-24-Plan Commission Meeting Agenda
	Plan Commission Minutes, 07-27-2022 DRAFT 
	1. SUB 22-09 Markrt at Olive Lots 6 and 7 Lot Consolidation Staff Report
	2. Application - SUB 22-08
	3. 3082_Consolidation_Lots 6 and 7_2022-07-12
	1. SUB 22-10 Market at Olive, Phase IV Record Plat Staff Report
	2. SUB 22-10 Application
	3. 2022-08-08 Market at Olive Plat 4_11x17
	1. SUB 22-11 Trinity Avenue R-O-W Dedication Plat Staff Report
	2. Trinity Avenue 2022-08-05 Review Copy
	1. Staff Report_CUP 22-07 7001 Olive
	2. C.U.P. Application

	Folded paper copies of Plat: 3
	Electronic copy: X
	Improvement Plans: 
	Other: 
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: X                  $375 Check Application Fee
	3 Property Owner Information: U City LLC (U City LLC under contract for two properties)
	Address: 1401 South Brentwood Suite 625
	1: 
	2: St. Louis, MO 63144
	applicant is other than owner  not applicable to rightofway vacation application 1: 
	applicant is other than owner  not applicable to rightofway vacation application 2: 
	Address 1: 
	Address 2: 
	number of lots proposed total acreage parcel identification andor any other applicable 1: 40 existing lots, plus ROW to be vacated
	number of lots proposed total acreage parcel identification andor any other applicable 2: 3 proposed lots, plus 2 areas of common ground
	number of lots proposed total acreage parcel identification andor any other applicable 3: 11.72 total acres
	of lots x 3500: 375
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off


